

APPROVED: 15 September 2023 doi: 10.2903/j.efsa.2023.e211016

Quantitative tools in microbial and chemical risk assessment

Deyan Stratev¹ and Vasilis P Valdramidis²

¹Department of Food Quality and Safety and Veterinary Legislation, Faculty of Veterinary Medicine, Trakia University, Stara Zagora, Bulgaria ²Department of Food Chemistry, National and Kapodistrian University of Athens, Greece

Abstract

The EU-FORA programme 'Quantitative tools in microbial and chemical risk assessment' was dedicated to training on predictive microbiology fundamentals, implementation of different modelling strategies, design of experiments and software tools such as MATLAB, GInaFiT and DMFit. The fellow performed MATLAB training on maximum specific growth rate (μ_{max}) determination according to the Ratkowsky model. GInaFiT training on different models for bacterial inactivation and DMFit training on growth parameters of *Vibrio parahaemolyticus* were also carried out. Optical density measurements of *V. parahaemolyticus* bacterial cultures were performed. The obtained kinetics of optical density measurements were used to estimate μ_{max} . Hereafter, Minimum inhibitory concentrations and non-inhibitory concentrations of aminoglycoside antibiotics were estimated based on the quantification of the fractional areas of the optical density vs time. It can be concluded that the results of the quantitative characterisation of *V. parahaemolyticus* are reliable and can be used for exposure assessments. Also, the turbidimetric assay can be applied for successful estimation of minimum inhibitory concentrations and non-inhibitory concentrations.

© 2023 European Food Safety Authority. *EFSA Journal* published by Wiley-VCH GmbH on behalf of European Food Safety Authority.

Keywords: predictive microbiology, risk assessment, software tools, maximum specific growth rate, minimum inhibitory concentrations, non-inhibitory concentrations, *Vibrio parahaemolyticus*

Correspondence: eu-fora@efsa.europa.eu

Declarations of interest: If you wish to access the declaration of interests of any expert contributing to an EFSA scientific assessment, please contact interestmanagement@efsa.europa.eu.

Suggested citation: Stratev, D., & Valdramidis, V. P., 2023. Quantitative tools in microbial and chemical risk assessment. *EFSA Journal*, *21*(S1), 1–11. https://doi.org/10.2903/j.efsa.2023.e211016

ISSN: 1831-4732

© 2023 European Food Safety Authority. *EFSA Journal* published by Wiley-VCH GmbH on behalf of European Food Safety Authority.

This is an open access article under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution-NoDerivs License, which permits use and distribution in any medium, provided the original work is properly cited and no modifications or adaptations are made.

EFSA may include images or other content for which it does not hold copyright. In such cases, EFSA indicates the copyright holder and users should seek permission to reproduce the content from the original source.



The EFSA Journal is a publication of the European Food Safety Authority, a European agency funded by the European Union.



Summary

The final report of the EU-FORA fellowship programme 'Quantitative tools in microbial and chemical risk assessment' hosted by the National and Kapodistrian University of Athens, and supervised by Prof. Vasilis P. Valdramidis and Prof. Charalampos Proestos is dedicated to summarising the activities of the fellow Deyan Stratev during programme implementation. The fellow is currently working as an associate professor in food safety and his scientific background is related to seafood microbiology. The introduction describes an outline of the working programme and its aims which included training in predictive microbiology fundamentals, the implementation of different modelling strategies, the design of experiments, training with the use of three different software tools (MATLAB, GInaFiT and DMFit) selected according to fellow's research topic and provided with an overall understanding of the main differences between modelling growth or inactivation models. Conclusions provide the main achievements as a result of EU-FORA programme training while some recommendations are also suggested.

Table of contents

Abstract	t	1						
Summa	ry	3						
1.	Introduction	5						
1.1.	Description of the work programme	5						
1.2.	Aims.	5						
1.3.	Additional activities for network widening	5						
2.	Training	5						
2.1.	Training on software	5						
2.1.1.	MATLAB	5						
2.1.2.	Microsoft [®] Excel add-ins – GInaFiT	5						
2.1.3.	Microsoft [®] Excel add-ins – DMFit	7						
3.	Case study	7						
3.1.	Data collection	8						
3.2.	Quantitative evaluations	8						
4.	Conclusion	9						
5.	Recommendations	9						
Referen	ces	9						
Abbrevia	ations	10						
Append	ppendix A – Secondary activities 11							

1. Introduction

1.1. Description of the work programme

The EU-FORA training programme 'Quantitative tools in microbial and chemical risk assessment' was designed to train fellow Deyan Stratev in the use and development of predictive models for assessing the bacterial responses for survival, growth and the probability of microbial recovery. The assessments included microbial responses under different food processing and preservation scenarios. Applications were performed by programming in MATLAB while analysis and interpretation of data were considered as inputs in microbial and chemical risk assessment studies. By the end of the activity, the trainee attained a fundamental understanding of the substantial body of applied modelling, statistics and recent developments in the field of predictive modelling and quantitative risk assessment of foods in the area of microbiology and chemistry. The trainee has also exercised personal responsibility and autonomous initiative in solving complex food safety, spoilage and chemical problems that are solved in a rigorous and sound approach. He has exploited available software packages and quantitative approaches for enriching current studies in the field in order to communicate results and innovations of research to peers.

1.2. Aims

The overall aim of the EU-FORA training programme 'Quantitative tools in microbial and chemical risk assessment' was to:

- i) develop trainee's capacity to design and generate informative experimental data;
- ii) understand model structure development and selection to describe quantitatively chemical, and microbiological phenomena and develop capabilities for quantifying accurately the sources of stochasticity;
- iii) make trainee familiar with optimisation software and model simulation tools that can be exploited for developing decision-making and quantitative risk assessment in food microbiology and chemistry.

1.3. Additional activities for network widening

The fellow participated in various events to improve his multidisciplinary work and research activities. He also participated in several secondary activities to meet these goals during the EU-FORA programme, which are described in Appendix A.

2. Training

2.1. Training on software

There are two possible ways to organise data processing in scientific research. One of them is MATLAB software, which has a pre-made code and can be tailored to the needs of the project. Another option is to use Excel and possibly some additional features such as GInaFiT or DMFit. These give better support if users are very familiar with the predicative microbiology topic.

2.1.1. MATLAB

MATLAB is a versatile tool used in numerous scientific fields, e.g. engineering, data analysis, algorithm development, etc. With it, one can analyse data, visualise it and create scripts. When used with a pre-written code, MATLAB can simulate different scenarios in real cases. An example of MATLAB implementation was how to determine the maximum specific growth rate (μ_{max}) according to the Ratkowsky model (Figure 1).



Figure 1: MATLAB training example on maximum specific growth rate (μ_{max}) determination according to the Ratkowsky model by the use of Q-Safe book (Valdramidis et al., 2017)

2.1.2. Microsoft[®] Excel add-ins – GInaFiT

Excel can help with many calculations and GInaFiT can help to simplify some of the calculations and even prevent typical mistakes in data processing (Figure 2). The tool is efficient in testing 10 types of microbial survival models relating to the growth of the microbial population with time (Geeraerd et al., 2005). These are:

- 1) classical log-linear curves,
- 2) curves displaying a shoulder before a log-linear decrease,
- 3) curves displaying a tail after a log-linear decrease,
- 4) survival curves displaying both shoulder and tail,
- 5) concave curves,
- 6) convex curves,
- 7) convex/concave curves followed by tailing,
- 8) biphasic inactivation kinetics,
- 9) biphasic inactivation kinetics preceded by a shoulder,
- 10) curves with a double concave/convex shape.

The models were originally published by Bigelow and Esty (1920), Cerf (1977), Geeraerd et al. (2000, 2005), Mafart et al. (2002), Albert and Mafart (2005), and Coroller et al. (2006). Along with the obtained parameter values, some statistical measures are automatically given: standard errors of the parameter values, the sum of squared errors, the (root) mean sum of squared errors, the R2 and the adjusted R2. In addition, t4D, the time needed for a 4 log reduction of the initial microbial population, as originally proposed by Buchanan et al. (1993), is also automatically reported (for data sets covering at least 4 decimal reductions).

	Arial		Arial	* 11 * A A =		≡ %·	👺 Wrap Text		Number *		•	- R 🔛		Normal Bad		Good		^ *	E		∑ AutoSum ↓ Fill -	ĭ <mark>A</mark> Ţ	Q	
Pas	e 🍼 Form	at Painter	B I ∐ ⁺	🖽 • 🔷 • 🗛	• = =		📑 Merge	& Center 🔹	🖙 - %	• 100	Condit	tional Format	as Neutra	l i	Calculatio	on C	heck Cell	-	Insert Delete	Format	Clear *	Sort & I	Find &	
	Clipboard	9	F	ont	6	Alic	anment	5	N	imber	5	ung lable		Str	vles				Cells			Editing	erect	~
A1		• I 🖂	√ fs	Time																				*
	А	в	с	D	E	F	G	н	1		к	L L I	м	N	0	Р	Q		R	s	Т	U	V V	
		Measured	Identified																					
1	Time	LOG10(N)	LOG10(N)	Squared differ	ence Par	rameters	Parameter S	tandard En	or									Data	Sheet Name:	Sheet3				
2	0,00	9,15	9,30	0,02	LO	G10(Nres)	3,58	0,12	_	Mean	Sum of Sq	uared Error	0,1267											
3	1,50	9,11	9,01	0,01	del	lta	6,73	2,27	R	oot Mean	Sum of Sq	uared Error	0,3559											
4	3,00	8,74	8,79	0,00	p	~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~	0,83	0,14				R-Square	0,9787											
5	5,50	8,47	8,45	0,00	LO	G10(N0)	9,30	0,27		4D rode	R-Squa	re adjusted	0,9749											
0	8,00	8,23	8,14	0,01	la e		فسيادا الماديية	0 - d		4D real	iction is r	eacheu at	±30,91	units of t	ume									
6	10,50	7.44	7,03	0,02	Ni-	(NO Mros)1		to)**o))) No																
0	20.50	6.71	6.76	0,02	For	dentificat	tion nurnes	a reformul	cs stad as															
10	25,50	6.09	6.26	0.03	10	G10(N)=1 O	G10((10**)	G10(N0)-10	**1.061	0(Nres))*1	0**((-t/de	ta)**n)+10*	*log10(Nre	s))										
11	30.50	5.50	5.77	0.07	35	can be deri	ived from						108101.110	•11										
12	40.50	4.84	4.85	0.00																				
13	50,50	4,32	4,08	0,06	LA	Albert and F	P. Mafart 20	5. A modifi	ed V be	10,00														
14	60,50	3,74	3,69	0,00	ina	ctivation. In	ternational	Journal of F	bod	9,00 🛉														
15	80,50	4,17	3,59	0,34																				
16	100,50	3,33	3,58	0,07						8,00	N													
17	110,50	4,15	3,58	0,32						7,00														
18	120,50	3,69	3,58	0,01						6,00 +		· · · · ·												
19	130,50	2,91	3,58	0,46					10	5.00														
20	140,50	3,77	3,58	0,03					2	3,00														
21	150,50	2,79	3,58	0,64						4,00 +		~			•	•	•							
22	160,50	3,77	3,58	0,03						3,00 +				•	· · ·	-								
23	Least Sum	of Squared	Error	2,15						2.00														
24										2,00														
25										1,00								_						
26										0,00							,							
2/										0,0	0 20,00	40,00 60	0,00 80,0	0 100,0	0 120,00	140,00 16	0,00 180,	00						
20	o Time											_						_						
29																							_	Ψ.



There are two approaches in using the tool depending on whether users have or do not have an idea of the general shape of their survival curves. The time for a 4-decimal reduction can be useful to summarise the information present in a data set, for example if a common survivor curve shape cannot be selected for a range of different conditions tested (Geeraerd et al., 2000).

The tool is also equipped with some built-in features testing for misuse, e.g. when the number of data points (observations) used is too limited in comparison with the number of parameters in the model type chosen (the number of parameters ranges from 2 to 5 for the 10 model types available).

2.1.3. Microsoft[®] Excel add-ins – DMFit

DMFit is a tool that can be found online at https://browser.combase.cc/DMFit.aspx or added as a Microsoft[®] Excel add-in. The web edition is a web-based application compliant with bacterial curves. In it, a linear phase is preceded and followed by a stationary phase. The desktop version is used to model the time variation of the logarithm of cell concentrations of bacterial batch cultures. DMFit can be used to present in a visual mode growth or survival data, obtain parameters estimates from data consistent with growth or survival models, calculate growth or death rate, lag phase time, initial or final cell count and estimate standard errors on these parameters (Figure 3).

Data input is fairly easy since it is compatible with Excel spreadsheets or text files (in online and desktop versions). Data can be inserted in two different types of models:

- a) Model of Baranyi and Roberts (1994) describes a sigmoid bacterial curve. This model, unlike other sigmoid curves, has very close to linear mid-phase. It has four main parameters (initial value, lag, maximum rate and final value) and two curvature parameters: mCurv and nCurv which describe the curvature of the sigmoid curve, respectively, at the beginning and at the end of the growth phase. This tool allows to describe only the growth or death at the stationary phase, if mCurv parameter is set to zero and 'no lag' model option is selected. The model can also describe only the lag phase and growth or death phase if nCurv is set to zero and 'no asymtot' model option is selected.
- b) Trilinear, biphasic or linear models. The trilinear model describes a bacterial growth curve with three straight lines: the lag phase and the stationary phase are presented by two horizontal straight lines. The slope of the third straight line describing the growth/death phase is called the 'maximum rate'. The biphasic model must be used when a data-based curve has no lag phase or no stationary phase. The linear model can be used in case bacterial counts describe only growth or death phase.

In the tool time is given in hours, bacteria count in \log_{10} cfu/g and maximum growth or death rate is given as \log_{10} cfu/g/h. After loading data, it must be ensured that units are aligned accordingly.

B I U I		Cut		Calibri	* 11	× A A	= =	≫- [Wrap Te	đ	General	*	Į.		Normal	Bad		Good		84	× 🖬	∑ AutoSur	n [™] <mark>A</mark> Ţ	2	
Cipber Prot A Agree Agree Number Sole Cole Bitter Sole A B C D E F G H I J K L I J K L I J K L I J K L I J K L I J K L M N N P Q R S T U V W 1 Conve D D E F G H I J K L M N N P Q R S T U V W 2 Itime Vold Itime	Pa	ste Cor	y ·	BIU	- 100 - 12	- A -		e	Merge &	Center ~	\$ - % ,	00.00	Conditional	Format as	Neutral	Calc	ulation	Check C	ell -	Insert D	elete Format	Close z	Sort &	Find &	
Class Clas Class Class <thc< th=""><th></th><th>- V FOR</th><th>mat Painter</th><th>-</th><th>Cont.</th><th>- - .</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>A humber</th><th></th><th>Formatting *</th><th>Table *</th><th></th><th>Ch.du.</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>-</th><th>• •</th><th>Cieai</th><th>Filter *</th><th>Select *</th><th></th></thc<>		- V FOR	mat Painter	-	Cont.	- - .					A humber		Formatting *	Table *		Ch.du.				-	• •	Cieai	Filter *	Select *	
A1 C D E F G H J K L M N O P Q R S T U V W 2 n1.1 20 0,069 90,059 90,024 2 10 10,02904 1,14559 0,0385 0,03872 0,03932 0,089 1 <th></th> <th colspan="13">Cuppoard in Pont in Augment in Number in Styles</th> <th colspan="6">Cells Editing</th>		Cuppoard in Pont in Augment in Number in Styles													Cells Editing										
A B C D E F G H J K L M N O P Q. R S T U V W 1 Curv nota y0attim time model mCurv nota y0attim model y0attim model y0attim model y0attim model y0attim	A	1	+ 1 2	K V	fx curv	/e																			*
Image Polation OpenMin Under Min Mode Mode <th></th> <th>A</th> <th>В</th> <th>с</th> <th>D</th> <th>E</th> <th>F</th> <th>G</th> <th>н</th> <th>1.1</th> <th>J.</th> <th>к</th> <th>L</th> <th>M</th> <th>N</th> <th>0</th> <th>Р</th> <th>Q</th> <th>R</th> <th>S</th> <th>Т</th> <th>U</th> <th>v</th> <th>w</th> <th></th>		A	В	с	D	E	F	G	н	1.1	J.	к	L	M	N	0	Р	Q	R	S	Т	U	v	w	
2 11 20 0,000 9,85 0,204 2 10 1 0,2090/4 1,46549 0,00978 0,1872 0 0,00978 0,9332 0,009 3 0.005 1 0,076181 0,04019 <th>1</th> <th>curve</th> <th>nData</th> <th>yDatMin</th> <th>tintval</th> <th>yDatMax</th> <th>model</th> <th>mCurv</th> <th>nCurv</th> <th>rate</th> <th>lag</th> <th>y0</th> <th>yEnd</th> <th>errCode</th> <th>se(fit)</th> <th>R^2_stat</th> <th>initVal</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>	1	curve	nData	yDatMin	tintval	yDatMax	model	mCurv	nCurv	rate	lag	y0	yEnd	errCode	se(fit)	R^2_stat	initVal								
3 Unive Val Unive Fit1 Unive Fit1 5 0.099 1 0.0786 1 0.0786 1 0.0786 1 0.0786 1 0.0786 1 0.0786 1 0.0786 1 0.0786 1 0.0786 1 0.0786 1 0.0786 1 0.089 1 0.089 1 0.089 0.0786 1 0.0895 0.0898 0.0786 1 0.0895 0.0786 0.0876 0.0876 0.0876 0.0876 0.0876 0.0876 0.0876 0.0876	2	Fit 1	20	0,069	9,85	0,204	2	10)	1 0,02990	4 1,146549	0,07368	5 0,1887	2	0 0,009878	0,95332	2 0,089								
4 0 0.009 1 0.07365 0 0.07365 0 0.07365 0 0.07365 0 0.07365 0.07365 0.07365 0.07561 0.07561 0.07561 0.07561 0.07561 0.07561 0.07561 0.07561 0.07561 0.07561 0.0757 0.0980 0.0995 0.08094 0.0995 0.08094 0.0995 0.08094 0.0995 0.08094 0.0995 0.08094 0.0995 0.099	3	time	yVal	Weight	Fit1	time	Fit 1																		
5 0,013 0,009 1 0,0760 1 0,0612 0 0,0825 0,076037 7 1,561 0,087 1 0,0813 0 0,0830 0 0,03930 0 0,03930 0 0,03930 0 0,0314 0 0,03138 0 0,03930 0 0,0314 0 0,03128 0 0,255 0,12806 0 0,0129 0 0,0312 0 0,0312 0 0,0312 0 0,0312 0 0,0312 0 0,0129 0 0,012 0	4		0,089	1	0,073685	0	0,073685	0,	25		cu	JRVE1													
6 1.046 0.076 1 0.087 1 0.087 1 0.0915 1,075 0.09034 8 2.071 0.11 1 0.0915 1,075 0.09074 0.11 0.0915 1,0175 0.29044 0.1175 0.29044 0.1175 0.29047 0.117 0.1175 0.29047 0.117 0.1175 0.1175 0.1175 0.1175 0.1175 0.1175 0.1175 0.1185 0.118 0.1175 0.1185 0.118 <t< th=""><th>5</th><th>0,51</th><th>3 0,069</th><th>1</th><th>0,076181</th><th>0,4925</th><th>0,076037</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></t<>	5	0,51	3 0,069	1	0,076181	0,4925	0,076037																		
7 1.661 0.087 1 0.0990 1,4775 0.09902 9 2.593 0.118 1 0.10318 1 0.10318 1 0.10318 1 0.10318 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 0.11216 1 1 1 1 1 0.11216 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0.11216 1	6	1,04	6 0,076	1	0,08179	0,985	0,080948		12		.**														
8 2,071 0,1 1 0,10381 1,97 0,10071 10 3,020 0,134 1 0,12562 0,12625 0,12804 0,127 0,175 1 0,175 1 0,175 1 0,175 1 0,175 1 0,175 1 0,175 1 0,175 1 0,175 1 0,175 1 0,175 1 0,175 1 0,175 1 0,175 1 0,18543 3,475 0,14222 1 0,175 1 0,18543 3,475 0,14224 0,175 1 0,18543 0,00 0 5 10 10 10 10,18228 5,91 0,18770 0,18243 0,00 0 5 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10 15 10	7	1,56	1 0,087	1	0,09105	1,4775	0,089302			6															
9 2.2993 0,138 1 0,11254 2,425 0,113967 10 3,020 0,134 1 0,11254 2,425 0,12806 11 3,453 0,15 1 0,142762 3,4475 0,142422 13 4,71 0,172 1 0,15854 4,4355 0,16957 14 5,210 0,176 1 0,18584 2,950 1,17869 15 5,758 0,127 1 0,18586 6,4025 0,188429 16 6,244 0,171 1 0,188605 6,4025 0,188429 17 6,761 0,177 1 0,188605 6,4025 0,188429 18 7,766 0,187 1 0,188718 7,88 0,18874 18 7,766 0,187 1 0,18872 8,865 0,18872 18 8,308 0,185 1 0,18712 7,375 0,188919 21 8,386 0,2 4 1 0,18872 8,865 0,18872 22 9,386 0,205 1 0,18872 8,865 0,18872 23 9,386 0,205 1 0,18872 8,865 0,18872 24 9,88 0,205 1 0,18872 8,865 0,18872 24 9,88 0,205 1 0,18872 8,865 0,18872 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	8	2,07	1 0,1	1	0,103318	1,97	0,100/1	_		1															
0 0 5 102 0,124 1 0,12524 4,255 0,126548 14 5,219 0,173 1 0,12554 4,255 0,15548 15 5,75 0,182 1 0,13755 5,475 0,18272 16 6,244 0,171 1 0,18828 5,91 0,18705 17 6,761 0,177 1 0,18805 6,602 0,18829 19 7,766 0,187 1 0,18828 5,91 0,18705 19 7,766 0,187 1 0,18828 8,910,18705 20 5 10 15 19 7,766 0,187 1 0,18828 8,910,18705 20 8,906 0,185 1 0,188718 7,880 0,188719 22 9,336 0,204 1 0,18872 8,805 0,18872 23 9,35 0,204 1 0,18872 8,0187 0,18872 24 9,336 0,204 1 0,18872 8,0187 0,18872 24 9,336 0,204 1 0,18872 8,018870 25 10 15 0,187 1 0,18872 8,018870 26 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	9	2,59	3 0,118	1	0,117651	2,4625	0,113967	= 0,	15 -	1															
11 3,553 0,173 1 0,16366 9,473 0,1742422 13 4,71 0,173 1 0,16366 9,494 0,164842 14 5,215 0,176 1 0,183674 4,325 0,105575 15 5,755 0,182 1 0,183624 9,015548 1 16 6,744 0,112 1 0,188263 9,015 1 0,188243 17 6,761 0,177 1 0,188264 0,055 1,18827 0,055 1 18 7,265 0,187 1 0,188274 0,188274 0 5 10 15 19 7,786 0,187 1 0,18874 1	10	3,10	2 0,134		0,132346	2,955	0,128068	W.	Š 0,1	/		 vVal 													
1 4,71 0,173 1 0,17554 4,325 0,15754 4,325 0,15754 4,325 0,15754 4,325 0,15754 4,325 0,15754 4,325 0,15754 4,325 0,15754 4,325 0,15754 4,325 0,15754 4,325 0,15754 4,325 0,15754 4,325 0,15754 1,35745 0,4524 0,05 0,15754 0,1575 0,15857 0,15857 0,15857 0,15857 0,15875 0,15875 0,15875 0,15875 0,15875 0,15875 0,15877	1	3,63	3 0,15	1	0,147802	3,4475	0,142422	- (E# 1													
1 9,17 1 0,18503 4,925 0,19503 4,925 0,19543 15 5,735 0,182 1 0,18528 5,91 0,870 0 5 10 15 17 6,761 0,171 1 0,188283 0,05 0 5 10 15 18 7,260 0,191 1 0,188205 6,025 0,188203 0 5 10 15 19 7,766 0,1871 1 0,188205 0,855 0,18871 0 5 10 15 21 8,386 0,2 1 0,188712 7,3875 0,188719	12	4,19	1 0 172	1	0 175754	4 4225	0,130348		-				-												
15 5,735 0.102 1 0.187128 5,4175 0,188423 16 6,244 0,171 1 0.18283 5,91 0,187735 18 7,269 0,197 1 0,188023 0,805 0,188714 19 7,766 0,197 1 0,188274 7,878 0,18873 20 8,908 0,1871 1 0,188714 7,88 0,18874 21 8,386 0,287 1 0,188724 7,878 0,18874 22 9,386 0,203 1 0,18872 8,785 0,18872 23 9,56 0,203 1 0,18872 8,8865 0,18872 24 9,85 0,203 1 0,18872 8,986 0,18872 26 9,85 0,28975 0,18872 1 1 1 27 9,85 0,2897 1 1,8874 1 1 28 1 1,8149 1 1 1 1 28 1 1,8149 1 1	14	5.21	9 0.176	1	0.183634	4 925	0,103557	0,	05				-												
16 6,24 0,171 1 0,188208 5,91 0,187705 17 6,761 6,177 1 0,188208 6,025 0,188429 0 5 10 15 18 7,266 0,197 1 0,186696 6,025 0,188429 0 5 10 15 19 7,786 0,187 1 0,188712 7,3875 0,188718 0 5 10 15 21 8,386 0,204 1 0,188718 0,188718 0,188719 0	19	5.73	5 0.182		0.187158	5 4175	0 185423	-																	
17 6,751 0,177 1 0,188029 0 5 10 15 18 7,756 0,197 1 0,188029 6,885 0,188339 1me 19 7,756 0,197 1 0,188029 6,885 0,188339 1me 20 8,908 0,1857 1 0,188714 7.88 0,18874 21 9,85 0,22 1 0,18872 0,18874 22 9,36 0,203 1 0,18872 0,8879 23 9,85 0,203 1 0,18872 0,8872 24 9,85 0,2837 1 0,18872 0,8872 26 9,85 0,2897 0,18872 0,8872 0 26 9,85 0,18872 0,18872 0 0 0 27 0,203 1 0,18872 0,18872 0 0 0 26 9,85 0,18872 0 0 0 0 0 0 28 0,203 1 0,18972 0 <th>16</th> <th>6.24</th> <th>4 0.171</th> <th>1</th> <th>0.188283</th> <th>5.91</th> <th>0.187705</th> <th></th> <th>0</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>_</th> <th></th>	16	6.24	4 0.171	1	0.188283	5.91	0.187705		0			_													
18 7,269 0,19 1 0,188719 0,188719 time 19 7,786 0,187 1 0,188712 7,387 0,188718 1 21 8,386 0,24 1 0,188712 8,375 0,188719	17	6,76	1 0,177	1	0,188605	6,4025	0,188429		0	5	10	15													
19 7,766 0,187 1 0,18712 7,3875 0,188909 20 8,056 0,155 1 0,18718 7,886 0,188714 21 9,356 0,2 1 0,18872 8,08714 22 9,356 0,243 1 0,18872 8,087 23 9,36 0,203 1 0,18872 8,087 24 - 9,955 0,18872 - - 24 - 9,955 0,18872 - - 25 - 9,955 0,18872 - - - 26 - - 9,95 0,18872 - - - 26 - - - - - - - - - 27 - <th>18</th> <th>7,26</th> <th>9 0.19</th> <th>1</th> <th>0,188689</th> <th>6.895</th> <th>0,188639</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>time</th> <th></th>	18	7,26	9 0.19	1	0,188689	6.895	0,188639				time														
20 8,808 0,155 1 0,188714 7,88<0,188714 21 8,836 0,2 1 0,18872 8,38719 23 9,35 0,203 1 0,18872 9,855 23 9,35 0,203 1 0,18872 9,857 24 9,85 0,18872 9,857 0,18872 25 9,85 0,2837 9,857 0,18872 26 9,85 0,18872 9,857 0,18872 26 9,85 0,18872 9,857 0,18872 26 9,85 0,18872 9,857 0,18872 27 9,85 0,18872 9,857 0,18872 28 9,85 0,18872 9,857 0,18872 29 9,85 0,18872 9,857 0,18872 29 9,85 0,18872 9,857 0,18872 29 9,85 9,857 9,857 9,857 29 9,857 9,857 9,857 9,857 29 9,857 9,857 9,857 9,857	15	7,78	6 0,187	1	0,188712	7,3875	0,188698					1	_												
21 8,336 0,24 1 0,18872 8,3775 0,18871 22 9,356 0,204 1 0,18872 8,057 0 23 9,85 0,203 1 0,18872 8,057 0 24	20	8,30	8 0,185	1	0,188718	7,88	0,188714																		
22 9,336 0,203 1 0,18972 8,865 0,18972 23 9,55 0,203 1 0,18972 9,85 0,18972 24 9,85 0,18972 9,85 0,18972 25 9,85 0,18972 9,85 0,18972 26 9,85 0,18972 9,85 0,18972 27 9,85 0,18972 9,85 0,18972 28 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 29 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 29 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 29 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 29 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 29 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 29 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 20 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 20 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 20 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 20 9,85	21	8,83	6 0,2	1	0,18872	8,3725	0,188719																		
23 9,85 0,283 1 0,18872 9,85 0,18872 24 9,85 0,18872 9,85 0,18872 9,85 0,18872 25 9,85 0,18872 9,85 0,18872 9,85 0,18972 26 9,85 0,18972 9,85 0,18972 9,85 0,18972 26 9,85 0,18972 9,85 0,18972 9,85 0,18972 27 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 28 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 29 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 9,85 29 9,85 9	22	9,33	6 0,204	1	0,18872	8,865	0,18872																		
24 9,85 0,1872 9 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	23	9,8	5 0,203	1	0,18872	9,3575	0,18872																		
25 26 27 28 29 29 29 29 29 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	24					9,85	0,18872																		
26 27 27 28 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29 29	25																								
27 28 29 29 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	26																								
28	27																								
	28																								
CIEVET Parame v/al lodev0	2																								
CONVEL FORMINS YVOI INDEAU (+)	130		CURVE1	Params	yVal I	ndex0	(+)									8 4									F

Figure 3: DMFit training example on growth parameters of V. parahaemolyticus

3. Case study

3.1. Data collection

OD measurements of *Vibrio parahaemolyticus* bacterial cultures were performed by means of a microplate reader at 630 nm. The obtained kinetics of OD measurements were used to estimate the growth rate of the cells, i.e. μ_{max} . Hereafter, MIC and NIC of aminoglycoside antibiotics (i.e. gentamicin and tobramycin) for the slowest and highest growers were estimated based on the quantification of the fractional areas of the optical density versus time.

3.2. Quantitative evaluations

The μ_{max} (h⁻¹) of *V. parahaemolyticus* isolated from Mediterranean mussels, veined rapa whelk, Mediterranean horse mackerel, oysters, Gilthead bream, Atlantic salmon, bluefish, European seabass ranged from 0.73 to 2.33. The highest grower was isolated from Atlantic salmon while the slowest one was recovered from Mediterranean mussels (Figure 4).





MIC and NIC of the slowest grower of *V. parahaemolyticus* for gentamicin were found to be below 35 mg/mL, while for tobramycin they were found to be below 0.10 mg/mL. The highest grower showed a lower value of MIC for gentamicin, but a higher value for tobramycin. Also, the highest grower showed lower values of NIC for both gentamicin and tobramycin.

4. Conclusion

It can be concluded that all planned activities of the EU-FORA programme were carried out successfully. The hosting site provided the required material basis and full implementation of the fellow to the current work of the Department of Food Chemistry. The fellow developed skills to design and generate experimental data and apply software tools related to quantitative risk assessment and food microbiology. The hosting and sending organisations have already developed a collaboration and they are going to continue future work by staff exchange and training. Moreover, the methods for determination of maximum specific growth rate (μ_{max}) and MIC and NIC for aminoglycoside antibiotics were fully implemented in the microbiological laboratory of the sending organisation. It is worth mentioning that the staff of this sending laboratory has already applied these methods that the fellow transferred to them. The completed case study provided useful information for the quantitative characterisation of *V. parahaemolyticus* growth, which can be a main input for microbial exposure assessments as part of risk analysis of food-borne pathogens. It was demonstrated that the turbidimetric assay was useful for the successful estimation of MIC and NIC for antibiotics. This method can be applied in order to obtain reliable results for MIC and NIC of *V. parahaemolyticus* and address current needs for identifying the antibiotic resistance of food-borne pathogens.

5. Recommendations

EU-FORA is an already recognised programme in training fellows in food risk assessment based on its 6 years of experience. It would be excellent if the programme continues training fellows and increases the pool of experts in food risk assessment.

References

Albert I and Mafart P, 2005. A modified Weibull model for bacterial inactivation. International Journal of Food Microbiology, 100, 197–211.

Baranyi J and Roberts TA, 1994. A dynamic approach to predicting bacterial growth in food. International Journal of Food Microbiology, 23, 277–294.

Bigelow WD and Esty JR, 1920. The thermal death point in relation to typical thermophylic organisms. Journal of Infectious Diseases, 27, 602–617.

Buchanan RL, Golden MH and Whiting RC, 1993. Differentiation of the effects of pH and lactic or acetic acid concentration on the kinetics of Listeria monocytogenes inactivation, Journal of Food Protection, 56, 474–478, 484.

Cerf O, 1977. A review. Tailing of survival curves of bacterial spores. Journal of Applied Microbiology, 42, 1–19.

- Coroller L, Leguerinel I, Mettler E, Savy N and Mafart P, 2006. General model, based on two mixed Weibull distributions of bacterial resistance, for describing various shapes of inactivation curves. Applied and Environmental Microbiology, 72, 6493–6502.
- Geeraerd AH, Herremans CH and Van Impe JF, 2000. Structural model requirements to describe microbial inactivation during a mild heat treatment. International Journal of Food Microbiology, 59, 185–209.
- Geeraerd AH, Valdramidis VP and Van Impe JF, 2005. GInaFiT, a freeware tool to assess non-log-linear microbial survivor curves. International Journal of Food Microbiology, 102, 95–105.
- Mafart P, Couvert O, Gaillard S and Leguerinel I, 2002. On calculating sterility in thermal preservation methods: application of the Weibull frequency distribution model. International Journal of Food Microbiology, 72, 107– 113.

Valdramidis VP, Cummins EJ and Van Impe JF, 2017. Textbook on Quantitative Tools for Sustainable Food and Energy in the Food Chain, 1st Edition. 331 pp. ISBN 978-90-77381-960.

Abbreviations

- EU-FORA The European Food Risk Assessment Fellowship Programme MIC minimum inhibitory concentrations
- NIC non-inhibitory concentrations
- OD optical density

Appendix A – Secondary activities

- 1) Lecture sessions provided by the hosting site
 - Lecture 'A History of Predictive Microbiology'
 - Lecture 'Predictive Microbiology Fundamentals'
 - Lecture 'Predictive Microbiology Fundamentals'
 - Lecture 'Experimental Design 1'
 - Lecture 'Kinetic Models'
 - Lecture 'Experimental Design 2'
 - Lecture 'QMRA Model Scenario Analysis'
 - Lecture 'Parameter Estimation'
 - Lecture 'Applied Modelling'
 - Lecture 'Non-Linear Regression in Excel'
 - Lecture 'Predicting Microbial Behaviour during Food Storage in Risk Assessment'
 - Lecture 'Binomial Distribution'
 - Lecture 'Risk Assessment'
 - Lecture 'MATLAB Getting Started'
 - Lecture 'MATLAB Parameter Estimation'
 - Lecture 'MATLAB Simulations'
 - Lecture 'Life Cycle Assessment'
 - Lecture 'Integrating Process Modelling approaches in Microbial Modelling'
 - Lecture 'Modelling Effect of Process and Formulation on Microbial Level in Food'
 - Lecture 'Thermal Inactivation: Application of Models'
 - Lecture 'Partitioning'
 - Lecture 'Implementation of Microbial Risk Assessment Model'
 - Lecture 'Building a Microbial Risk Assessment Model'
 - Lecture 'Basics of Multiscale Modelling in Predictive Microbiology'
- 2) Participation in IAFP's European Symposium on Food Safety with poster 'Growth variability of *Vibrio parahaemolyticus* strains isolated from seafood', Aberdeen, 3–5 May 2023.
- 3) 'FunShielf4Med' seminar 'Identification of Mycotoxins', Institute of Technology of Agricultural Products, Athens, 16 May 2023.
- 4) Visit at Laboratory of Food Quality Control and Hygiene of Agricultural University of Athens, 18 May 2023.
- Participation in the 14th edition of the International Congress on Engineering and Food (ICEF14) with poster 'Quantitative assessments to characterise the antibiotic resistance of seafood microbial isolates', 19–23 June, Nantes, France.
- 6) Participation in working group meetings with PhD students of the National and Kapodistrian University of Athens and the research groups of Prof. Vasilis Valdramidis.